
  
www.region2planning.com/jackson-county-planning-commission 

 

Jackson County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 
 

MEETING NOTICE 

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Grant E. Bauman 
R2PC Principal Planner 
(517) 768-6711 
gbauman@co.jackson.mi.us 

DATE: March 12, 2020 

TIME: 6:00 p.m. 

PLACE: 5th Floor Commission Chambers 
 Jackson County Tower Building 
 120 W. Michigan Avenue 
 Jackson, Michigan 49201 

MEETING AGENDA 
 

1. Call to order and pledge of allegiance 

2. Public comment [3 MINUTE LIMIT] 

3. Approval of minutes 

Approval of the February 13, 2020, meeting minutes [ACTION] ...............................................................  3 

4. Approval of agenda 

Approval of the March 12, 2020, meeting agenda [ACTION] 

5. Request(s) for review, comment, and recommendation 

a. Consideration of township zoning amendment(s) 

(1) CZ | #20-06| Summit Township Rezoning [ACTION] ....................................................................  5 

(2) CZ | #20-07 | Summit Township Rezoning [ACTION]  ................................................................  29 

b. Consideration of master plan(s) – None 

c. Farmland and Open Space Preservation Program (PA 116) application(s) 

(1) CZ | #20-01| Hanover Township [ACTION]  ................................................................................  51 

6. Other business 

a. Unfinished business – Jackson County Master Plan [ACTION] 

Proposed goals and objectives and other information will be provided at the meeting. 

b. New business – Jackson City + County Nonmotorized Plan [PRESENTATION] 

Staff requests that this item be moved after Item #4 in order to accommodate the schedule of the presenter. 

7. Public comment [2 MINUTE LIMIT] 

8. Commissioner comment 

9. Adjournment 

The next meeting of the Jackson County Planning Commission is scheduled for April 9, 2020 

03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 1

mailto:gbauman@co.jackson.mi.us


This page is intentionally blank. 

03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 2



  
www.region2planning.com/jackson-county-planning-commission 

 

Jackson County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 

MEETING MINUTES 

February 13, 2020 
5th Floor Commission Chambers ● Jackson County Tower Building ● Jackson, Michigan 

Members Present: Mr. Timothy Burns, At Large; Mr. Roger Gaede, Environment; Ms. Nancy Haw-
ley, At Large; Mr. Ted Hilleary, Education; Mr. Russ Jennings, At Large; Mr. Corey 
Kennedy, Jackson Co. Board of Comm.; and Ms. Jennifer Morris, At Large 

 Members Absent: Ms. Amy Guerriero, Industry and Economics, and Mr. Jim Videto, Agriculture 

 Liaisons Present: Mr. Grant Bauman, Principal Planner 

 Others Present: None. 

Item 1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance. The meeting was called to order at 6:00 p.m. by 
Secretary Morris. Those in attendance rose and joined in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Item 2. Public Comment. There was no public comment. 

Item 3. Approval of Minutes. A motion was made by Comm. Hilleary, and seconded by Comm. 
Hawley, to approve the January 9, 2020, meeting minutes as presented. The motion was ap-
proved unanimously. 

Item 4. Approval of the Agenda. Staff requested that the agenda be amended to include the elec-
tion of officers under new business (Item #6b). A motion was made by Comm. Kennedy, and 
seconded by Comm. Hilleary, to approve the February 13, 2020, meeting agenda as pre-
sented. The motion was approved unanimously. 

Item 5. Request(s) for Review, Comment, and Recommendation. 

a. Consideration of Township Zoning Amendment(s). 

(1) CZ | #20-04a, -04b, -04c, & -04d | Grass Lake Charter Township 

Staff summarized his report regarding the proposed rezoning of the subject proper-
ties—identified in the staff report as ‘A’, ‘B’, ‘C’, and ‘D’; known as Parcel ID #000-
10-34-126-001-07, #000-10-34-301-003-00, #000-10-34-326-001-00, and #000-10-
34-326-002-00, respectively; and located in Section 34 (T2S-R2E) of the Township—
from ‘general commercial (GC)’ to ‘single family residential (R-2)’. The Township 
Planning Commission recommends approval of rezoning Parcels ‘B’ - ‘D’ to ‘C-2’ and 
the rezoning of the southern portion of Parcel ‘A’ to ‘R-2’, retaining the ‘GC’ zoning 
on the remainder of the property. Staff advised County Planning Commissioners to 
recommend approval of the rezoning to ‘R-2’ for parcels ‘B’ - ‘D’ and disapproval of 
the partial rezoning of parcel ‘A’ to ‘R-2’ (please see the staff report). 

After some discussion a motion was made by Comm. Burns, and seconded by 
Comm. Hawley, to concur with the staff advisement to recommend approval of the 
rezoning to ‘R-2’ for Parcels ‘B’ - ‘D’ and approval of rezoning the entirety of Parcel 

03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 3



02/13/20 JCPC Minutes Page 2 
 

‘A’ to ‘R-2’, or disapproval of the partial rezoning to ‘R-2’ for Parcel ‘A’, to the Grass 
Lake Charter Township Board (please see the staff report and these minutes). The 
motion was approved unanimously. 

(2) CZ | #20-05 | Sandstone Charter Township 

Staff summarized his report regarding the proposed rezoning of the subject prop-
erty—known as Parcel ID #000-07-36-201-001-09 and located in Section 36 (T2S-
R2W) of the Township—from ‘suburban residential (RS-1)’ to ‘agricultural (AG-1)’. 
County Planning Commissioners were advised to recommend approval with com-
ments of the rezoning to ‘AG-1’ (please see the staff report). 

After some discussion a motion was made by Comm. Kennedy, and seconded by 
Comm. Jennings, to recommend approval with comments of the rezoning to ‘AG-1’ 
to the Sandstone Charter Township Board (please see the staff report). The motion 
was approved unanimously. 

b. Consideration of Master Plan(s). None. 

c. Farmland & Open Space Preservation Program (PA 116) application(s). None. 

Item 6. Other Business. 

a. Unfinished Business. 

Jackson County Master Plan.  Commissioners and staff discussed the next steps in de-
veloping the master plan. It was decided to concentrate on goals and objectives related 
to land use, including the agricultural preservation component from the community 
master plan. The future land use categories identifying areas recommended for agricul-
tural preservation, low- and high-density residential, commercial, and industrial, and the 
categories of institutions and parks as overlays, will be shown on a map utilizing ‘bub-
bles’. 

b. New Business. 

Election of Officers.  After some discussion the following motions were made: 

A motion was made by Comm. Hilleary, and seconded by Comm. Burns, to elect Comm. 
Morris as the Chair of the Jackson County Planning Commission for 2020. The motion 
was approved unanimously. 

A motion was made by Comm. Jennings, and seconded by Comm. Hilleary, to elect 
Comm. Hawley as the Secretary of the Jackson County Planning Commission for 2020. 
The motion was approved unanimously. 

Item 7. Public Comment. None. 

Item 8. Commissioner Comment. Comm. Hawley announced the availability of the Jackson 
County Conservation District’s seedling tree catalogue. 

Item 9. Adjournment. The meeting was adjourned by Secretary Morris at 6:57 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted by:  
Grant Bauman, Recording Secretary 

03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 4



  
www.region2planning.com/jackson-county-planning-commission/ 

 

Jackson County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 

COORDINATED ZONING REPORT | #20-06 

 To: County Planning Commissioners 
 From: Grant E. Bauman, Principal Planner 
 Date: March 9, 2020 

 Proposal: A rezoning in Summit Township 

Request 

The Sentry Self Storage facility and a portion of the adjacent parent property are proposed for rezoning 
to ‘highway service commercial (C-3)’ (see the zoning amendment and rezoning worksheet forms). 

Purpose 

The purpose of the request is to allow for the expansion of the Sentry Self Storage facility onto the 
southern ⅔ (approximately) of the adjacent parent parcel (see Figures 1 and 5b); the applicant would 
also detach (i.e., ‘split off’) it from the parent property and attach (i.e., join) it to the adjacent commer-
cial lot (see the Summit Township Zoning Application).  The northern ⅓ (approximately) of the parcel 
would continue to be used residentially and remain zoned ‘urban residential (RU-1).* 

Location and Size of the Property 

The approximately 3.85 acre Sentry Self Storage facility (ID #000-13-24-301-067-00) and the adjacent 
2.25-acre parent property (ID #000-13-24-301-068-00) are situated in Section 24 (T3S-R1W) of the 
Township (see Figure 1). They are located on the south side of McDevitt Avenue west of US-127. The 
portion of the parent parcel proposed for rezoning is approximately 1.42 acres, beginning 220 south of 
the road right-of-way. 

Current Land Use 

Property assessment data shows that the Sentry Self Storage facility is assessed ‘commercial’ (see Figure 
2). The adjacent parent property contains a single-family dwelling and is assessed ‘residential’, as are 
lots to the northeast, south and west (see Figure 2); the southern ⅔ (approximately) of the parent parcel 
would be considered vacant if it was detached. Lots to the north of the property are assessed ‘commer-
cial’ and contain commercial uses. The Cozy Parklife, LLC, manufactured housing park, located to the 
east, is assessed ‘commercial’. 

Future Land Use 

The Summit Township Master Plan recommends ‘commercial uses to the north of McDevitt Avenue, as 
well as along its south side (in the vicinity of Draper Road), and a mix of ‘high- and low density residen-
tial’ uses further to the south (see Figure 3). 

Current Zoning 

The Sentry Self Storage facility is zoned ‘local commercial (C-1)’ as are parcels to the north/northwest 

                                                 
* Please note that the proposed use is listed for informational purposes only. It should not be utilized in making the rezoning 
decision. Circumstances may change tomorrow which make the proposed use impractical. All of the uses that the proposed 
zoning designation would allow are pertinent to the rezoning request. 

03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 5



CZ | #20-06 Page 2 
 

(see Figure 4). The adjacent parent property is zoned ‘urban residential (RU-1)’ as are parcels to the 
east, south and west. Most of the Cozy Parklife, LLC, manufactured housing park is zoned ‘mobile home 
residential (MH-1)’ although its office/clubhouse is zoned ‘local commercial (C-1)’. 

Water and Sewer Availability 

Municipal water and sewer services are available (see the rezoning worksheet form). 

Public Road/Street Access 

McDevitt Avenue, a paved ‘county primary’ constructed to ‘class A standards’, provides direct access. 

Environmental Constraints 

The Township did not provide any information of environmental constraints pertaining to the Sentry Self 
Storage facility. The adjacent parent property has no known environmental constraints (see the rezoning 
worksheet form). 

Township Planning Commission Recommendation 

Summit Township received an application to rezone the southern ⅔ (approximately) of the parent parcel 
to ‘general commercial (C-2)’ and sent it to the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC)—which also staffs 
the JCPC— for analysis and advisement. R2PC staff suggested that the request be changed to rezone: (1) 
the Sentry Self Storage facility, (2) the southern ⅔ (approximately) of the adjacent parent parcel, and (3) 
the Cozy Parklife, LLC, office/clubhouse to ‘highway service commercial (C-3)’, bringing the self-storage 
facility into conformance with the Zoning Code and consolidating the commercial zoning pattern in this 
part of the Township. The Summit Township Planning Commission then recommended approval of the 
proposed rezoning of the Sentry Self Storage facility and the southern ⅔ (approximately) of the adjacent 
parent parcel to ‘highway service commercial (C-3)’. 

JCPC Staff Analysis 

Sec. 150.381 of Summit Township’s zoning code —and the zoning plan element in the Summit Township 
Master Plan— contains the following criteria upon which a rezoning request must be considered: 

1. Is the proposed rezoning consistent with the policies and uses proposed for that area in the 
Master Plan? 

Yes. Summit Township’s future land use map recommends ‘commercial uses along the south 
side of McDevitt Avenue (in the vicinity of Draper Road) and a mix of ‘high- and low density resi-
dential’ uses further to the south (see Figure 3). Given that a future land use category is not 
meant to be applied to individual parcels as specifically as a zoning district, the proposed rezon-
ing is consistent. 

2. Will all of the uses allowed under the proposed rezoning be compatible with other zones and 
uses in the surrounding area? 

Yes. The northern ⅓ (approximately) of the property would continue to be used residentially 
and remain zoned ‘urban residential (RU-1)’. Parcels to the north of the north/northwest of the 
properties are zoned ‘local commercial (C-1)’ and contain commercials. Lots to the northeast are 
zoned ‘highway service commercial (C-3)’ and ‘general commercial (C-2)’. 

3. Will public services and facilities be significantly adversely impacted by a development or use 
allowed under the requested rezoning? 

No. McDevitt Avenue, a paved ‘county primary’ constructed to ‘class A standards’, provides di-
rect access to the subject parcels. 

  

03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 6

http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll/Michigan/summittwp_mi/summittownshipmichigancodeofordinances?f=templates$fn=default.htm$3.0$vid=amlegal:summittownship_mi
http://www.region2planning.com/wp-content/uploads/2016/11/Sumit-TownshipApprovedMasterPlan.pdf
http://www.region2planning.com/wp-content/uploads/2016/11/Sumit-TownshipApprovedMasterPlan.pdf


CZ | #20-06 Page 3 
 

4. Will the uses allowed under the proposed rezoning be equally or better suited to the area 
than uses allowed under the current zoning district? 

Yes. The existing Sentry Self Storage facility will be zoned properly and the commercial zoning 
pattern in this part of the Township will be further consolidated, leaving one remnant of ‘local 
commercial (C-1)’ zoning directly to the east. 

JCPC Staff Advisement 

The proposed rezoning conforms to the Summit Township Master Plan and will make the Sentry Self 
Storage facility legally conforming. Unfortunately, the Cozy Parklife, LLC, clubhouse was not included in 
the amended request. Consequently, a remnant of ‘local commercial (C-1)’ will remain on the south side 
of McDevitt Avenue, east of the Sentry Self Storage facility. 

Based upon this analysis, staff advises the Summit Township Plan-
ning Commission to recommend APPROVAL WITH COMMENTS to 
the Summit Township Board of the proposed rezoning of the Sentry 
Self Storage facility (ID #000-13-24-301-067-00) and the southern ⅔ 
(approximately) of the adjacent parent property (ID #000-13-24-
301-068-00)—beginning 220 feet south of the road right-of-way—
to ‘highway service commercial (C-3)’, noting the need to further 
consolidate the commercial zoning pattern in this part of the Town-
ship by rezoning the office/clubhouse of the Cozy Parklife, LLC, 
manufactured housing park at some point in the future (ID #000-
13-24-301-066-00)’ to C-3). 

Figure 1 
Location 

 

Suggested Actions: 

(1) Recommend APPROVAL 
(2) Recommend DISAPPROVAL 
(3) Recommend APPROVAL WITH 

COMMENTS 
(4) Take NO ACTION 

Staff Report Attachments: 

Background information provided 
by the Summit Township Zoning 
Administrator 

03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 7



CZ | #20-06 Page 4 
 

Figure 2 
Property Assessment 

 
Figure 3 

Municipal Future Land Use 

 

03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 8



CZ | #20-06 Page 5 
 

Figure 4 
Municipal Zoning 

 
Figure 5a 

Aerial Photo 

 

03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 9



CZ | #20-06 Page 6 
 

Figure 5b 
Aerial Photo 

 
Figure 6 

Google Photo | Looking South 

 

03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 10



03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 11

gbauman
Typewriter
20       07



Summit Township Planning Commission 
February 18, 2020 

 
 
 

Members Present: Jack Shelby; Chairman, Laurie Cunningham; Secretary, Robert Kendall, 
Allan Hooper, Mark Cesarz, John Griffin, Tom Beila, Todd Emmons, Board Liaison, John Worden; 
Summit Township, Zoning Administrator. 
 
Members Absent: George Gancsos Jr 

 
The meeting was called to order by Jack Shelby; Chairman on February 18, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. in 
The Summit Township Hall, 2121 Ferguson Rd. 
 
A motion was made by Allan Hooper, supported by John Griffin to approve the agenda. Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
A motion was made by John Griffin, supported by Robert Kendall, to approve the minutes of 
the January 21, 2020 meeting. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
    
Case# 20-02-003-Site Plan review-3370 Spring Arbor Rd-Jackson County Animal Shelter.  
Jason Covalle, Architect for Animal Shelter, presented the proposed building addition  
(6,545 sq. ft.) and parking addition for the Animal Shelter.  There will be a separate area for 
adoption and the intake of animals.  The electrical, mechanical and generator will be updated. 
New Fire suppression will be installed. Approval was received for the storm retention plan from 
Jackson County Drain Commissioner. There were questions from Board members concerning 
hours of operation, water source, noise, lights in parking lot and the propane tank. Jason 
Covalle stated there may be some after hour learning classes, has not had any noise complaints 
in the past, will connect to the water main on Spring Arbor Rd, parking lot lights will full cut off 
led lights, and will be removing the propane tank and hooking to natural gas.  John Worden 
informed him that they will have to work with fire chief so the east side of building will be 
drivable for fire trucks. 
Public Comment: none 
A motion made by Allan Hooper, supported by John Griffin to approve the site plan review with 
conditions of approval from the Drain Commissioner, DPW Department, JDOT, and the Fire 
Department. Motion carried unanimously. 
 

 
Case 20-01-0001-Morris Inv./Cynthia Schultz-1235-1245 McDevitt Rd -Rezoning. Cindy Schultz 
explained she wants to divide off parcel 000-13-24-301-068-00, rezone from RU-1 to C-3 and 
combine remaining property from 1235 E McDevitt Rd to join 1245 E McDevitt Rd 000-13-24-
301-067-00, rezone from C-1 to C-3. Plans to split the property and sell the existing house, and 

03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 12



use the land as part of storage and to add 30 additional units. The existing entrance will be 
used. 
Public Comment: none 
A motion was made by Allan Hooper, supported by John Griffin to recommend to the Township 
Board approval of the the requested rezoning as presented. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
Case 20-02-0002-2500-2600 Robinson Rd-BSJ Real Estate owner- Rezone from RS-2 to O-1 
Kevin Thompson on behalf for BSJ Realty presented the request for rezoning to O-1. Region 2, 
Grant Bauman has recommended the rezoning, and the Master Plan fits the area. Will be 
combining the parcels for approximately 10 acres, and plan to implement buffer zones. Board 
members inquired about current plans for the space. Kevin Thompson informed them that BSJ 
Realty is not going to be developing it, only preparing the area for sale. 
Public comment: 
Moe Page, lives right next door at 2650 Robinson Rd., concerned with what may go in there and 
how will affect property values, and hopes the developer with be considerate of the neighbors. 
Jack Shelby explained that any future development will be subject to a site plan review and will 
have to presented to this board. The Road Commission would have jurisdiction over where the 
driveway would be placed, Spring Arbor Rd versus Robinson Rd. 
Cheryl Conrad, 2565 Robinson Rd, asked why the hurry to rezone, 10 acre parcel, the building 
could be huge, would need a big buffer to hide. Traffic concerns with the Lumen Christi drive. 
Todd Emmons explained there is a limitation on elevation and also property is close to the 
airport and may need their approval. John Shelby explained again that those concerns along 
with lights and drainage etc. would have to be addressed and approved at the site plan review 
when ready to build. 
Tom Legarie, 2505 Robinson Rd. Asked to be notified when a site plan comes to this Board, has 
concerns with entrances, which explained will be determined by JDOT.  
Moe Page, asked about lot growing wild until its sold. John Worden informed him there is a 
Weed and Grass Ordinance would have to be followed.  
John Worden presented letter of opposition to the Board that he received. 
A motion was made by Todd Emmons, supported by Robert Kendall to recommend approval to 
the Township Board the rezoning of parcels-000-13-07-426-027-01 and 000-13-07-426-027-
02,2500 and 2600 Robinson Rd. from RS-2 to O-1. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Other Business: none 
 
Meeting adjourned at 6:54 p.m. by Jack Shelby; Chairman 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
________________________     
Laurie Cunningham, Secretary 
 
Summit Township Planning Commission 

03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 13

gbauman
Highlight



 

120 West Michigan Avenue • Jackson, Michigan  49201 •  (517) 788-4426 •  (517) 788-4635 
 

STAFF REPORT | #20-01-0001 

 To: Summit Township Planning Commissioners 
c/o John Worden, Summit Township Zoning Administrator 

 From: Grant E. Bauman 
R2PC Principal Planner 

 Date: January 14, 2020 

 Proposal: The partial rezoning of 1235 East McDevitt Avenue 

Request 
A portion of the parent property is proposed for rezoning to ‘general commercial (C-2)’ from ‘urban resi-
dential 1 (RU-1)’ (see the zoning amendment and rezoning worksheet forms). 

Purpose 
The purpose of the request is to allow for the expansion of the adjacent Sentry Self Storage onto the 
southern ⅔ (approximately) of the parent parcel (see Figures 1 and 5b); the applicant would also detach 
(i.e., ‘split off’) it from the parent property and attach (i.e., join) it to the adjacent commercial lot (see 
the Summit Township Zoning Application).1 The northern ⅓ (approximately) of the parcel would con-
tinue to be used residentially and remain zoned ‘urban residential (RU-1). 

Location and Size of the Property 
The approximately 2.25-acre parent property (ID #000-13-24-301-068-00) is situated in Section 24 (T3S-
R1W) of the Township (see Figure 1). It is located on the south side of McDevitt Avenue west of Sentry 
Self Storage and US-127. The portion of the parcel proposed for rezoning is approximately 1.42 acres, 
beginning 220 south of the road right-of-way. 

Current Land Use 
Property assessment data shows that the entire parent property contains a single-family dwelling and is 
assessed ‘residential’, as are lots to the (north)east, south and west (see Figure 2); the southern ⅔ (ap-
proximately) of the parent parcel would be considered vacant if it was detached. Lots to the north of the 
property and to its (south)east (and further to the east), are assessed ‘commercial’ and contain commer-
cials uses, including Sentry Self Storage. 

Future Land Use 
The Summit Township Master Plan recommends ‘commercial uses to the north of McDevitt Avenue, as 
well as along its south side (in the vicinity of Draper Road), and a mix of ‘high- and low density residen-
tial’ uses further to the south (see Figure 3). 

                                                 
1 Please note that the proposed use is listed for informational purposes only. It should not be utilized in making the rezoning 
decision. Circumstances may change tomorrow which make the proposed use impractical. All of the uses that the proposed 
zoning designation would allow are pertinent to the rezoning request. 

03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 14



Staff Report | #20-01-0001 Page 2 

Current Zoning 
The subject property is zoned ‘urban residential (RU-1)’, as are parcels to the (north)east, south and 
west (see Figure 4) Lots to the north and to the (south)east (and further to the east) are zoned ‘local 
commercial (C-1)’. Properties further to the northeast are zoned ‘highway service commercial (C-3) and 
‘general commercial (C-2)’. 

Water and Sewer Availability 
Municipal water and sewer services are provided to the subject parcel (see the rezoning worksheet 
form). 

Public Road/Street Access 
McDevitt Avenue, a paved ‘county primary’ constructed to ‘class A standards’, provides direct access to 
the subject parcel. 

Environmental Constraints 
The subject property has no known environmental constraints according to the Township (see the re-
zoning worksheet form). 

Analysis and Advisement 
Sec. 150.381 of Summit Township’s zoning code —and the zoning plan element in the Summit Township 
Master Plan— contains the following criteria upon which a rezoning request must be considered: 

1. Is the proposed rezoning consistent with the policies and uses proposed for that area in the 
Township’s Master Land Use Plan? 

Yes. Summit Township’s future land use map recommends ‘commercial uses along the south 

side of McDevitt Avenue (in the vicinity of Draper Road) and a mix of ‘high- and low density resi-
dential’ uses further to the south (see Figure 3). Given that a future land use category is not 
meant to be applied to individual parcels as specifically as a zoning district, the proposed rezon-
ing is consistent. 

2. Will all of the uses allowed under the proposed rezoning be compatible with other zones and 
uses in the surrounding area? 

Yes. The northern ⅓ (approximately) of the property would continue to be used residentially 

and remain zoned ‘urban residential (RU-1)’. Parcels to the north of the property and to the 
(south)east (and further to the east), are zoned ‘local commercial (C-1)’ and contain commer-
cials uses including Sentry Self Storage. Lots further to the northeast are zoned ‘highway service 
commercial (C-3)’ and ‘general commercial (C-2)’ 

3. Will any public services and facilities be significantly adversely impacted by a development or 
use allowed under the requested rezoning? 

No. McDevitt Avenue, a paved ‘county primary’ constructed to ‘class A standards’, provides di-

rect access to the subject parcel. 

4. Will the uses allowed under the proposed rezoning be equally or better suited to the area 
than uses allowed under the current zoning of the land? 

No. Although the rezoning would not change the mix of commercial and residential uses cur-

rently found in the surrounding area, adjacent properties assessed ‘commercial’ are zoned ‘local 
commercial (C-1)’ making that zone better suited to the surrounding area than ‘general com-
mercial (C-2). 

03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 15

http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll/Michigan/summittwp_mi/summittownshipmichigancodeofordinances?f=templates$fn=default.htm$3.0$vid=amlegal:summittownship_mi
http://www.region2planning.com/wp-content/uploads/2016/11/Sumit-TownshipApprovedMasterPlan.pdf
http://www.region2planning.com/wp-content/uploads/2016/11/Sumit-TownshipApprovedMasterPlan.pdf


Staff Report | #20-01-0001 Page 3 

R2PC Staff Advisement 
The proposed rezoning conforms to the Summit Township Master Plan, although ‘local commercial (C-1)’ 
rezoning would be more in keeping with the zoning of adjacent commercial properties. However, Sec. 
150.145.173 of the Summit Township Zoning Code only allows ‘storage sheds and storage facilities for 
rent’ as a permitted use in the ‘highway service commercial (C-3)’ district. Therefore, it is suggested that 
the Township recommend that the applicant amend its request to include the southern ⅔ (approxi-
mately) of the subject property and the adjacent property containing Sentry Self Storage (ID #000-13-24-
301-067-00) and change the proposed district to ‘highway service commercial (C-3)’ district in order to 
facilitate the expansion of that business. 

It would also make sense to rezone what appears to be the office/clubhouse of the Cozy Parklife, LLC, 
manufactured housing park in the suggested ‘C-3’ rezoning. If the owner of that property (ID #000-13-
24-301-066-00) agrees, commercial zoning in this portion of Summit Township would be consolidated. 
Conformance with the Township’s master plan would also be maintained under this scenario. Please 
note that the suggested changes would necessitate the establishment of a new public hearing and pub-
lishing/mailing an amended public notice. 

Based upon this analysis, staff advises the Summit Township Plan-
ning Commission to recommend DISAPPROVAL to the Summit 
Township Board of the proposed rezoning of the southern ⅔ (ap-
proximately) of the subject property (ID #000-13-24-301-068-00) to 
‘general commercial (C-2)’ and to suggest that the applicant amend 
its request to ‘highway service commercial (C-3)’ and include the 
adjacent properties containing Sentry Self Storage (ID #000-13-24-
301-067-00) the office of Cozy Parklife, LLC, manufactured housing 
park (ID #000-13-24-301-066-00)’. 

Staff Report Attachments: 
Background information provided by the Summit Township Zoning Administrator 

Figure 1 

Location 

 

Suggested Actions: 
(1) Recommend APPROVAL 
(2) Recommend DISAPPROVAL 
(3) Recommend APPROVAL WITH 

COMMENTS 
(4) Take NO ACTION 

Staff Report Attachments: 
Background information provided 
by the Summit Township Zoning 
Administrator 

03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 16

http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll/Michigan/summittwp_mi/summittownshipmichigancodeofordinances?f=templates$fn=default.htm$3.0$vid=amlegal:summittownship_mi


Staff Report | #20-01-0001 Page 4 

Figure 2 

Property Assessment 

 
Figure 3 

Municipal Future Land Use 

 

03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 17



Staff Report | #20-01-0001 Page 5 

Figure 4 

Municipal Zoning 

 
Figure 5a 

Aerial Photo 

 

03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 18



Staff Report | #20-01-0001 Page 6 

Figure 5b 

Aerial Photo 

 
Figure 6 

Google Photo | Looking South 

 

03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 19



JCPC Case #: _____-_____ 
(For JCPC Use Only) REZONING WORKSHEET FORM 

 
 JACKSON COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 

(COORDINATING ZONING) 
Return to: Jackson County Planning Commission ∙ c/o Region 2 Planning Commission ∙ 120 W. Michigan Avenue ∙ Jackson, Michigan 49201 

Please submit with the “Zoning Amendment Form” for a district boundary change (rezoning), not a text amendment. 

 
Township of:  ______________________________________  Township Case #:  _________________________________________  

Township official we may contact:  _______________________________________________  Phone #: ( _____ ) _____ - __________ 

Applicant: ____________________________________________________________________  Phone #: ( _____ ) _____ - __________ 

Rezoning Request: From: ______________________________ ( ______ ) To: ______________________________ ( ______ ) 

Property Location: Section(s): ____________________ Quarter Section(s):  NW  NE  SW  SE 

Legal Description and/or Survey Map/Tax Map (please attach)  Yes  No (Please do not use only the Parcel ID Number) 

Parcel Size (if more than one parcel, label “A” - “Z”):  ________________________________________________________________________  

 ____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

Please attach location map  Yes  No 

What is the existing use of the site?  _________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

 ____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

What is the proposed use of the site?  _______________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

 ____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

What are the surrounding uses (e.g.: agriculture, single-family residential, highway commercial, etc.)? 

 North:  _________________________________________________  South:   

 East:  _________________________________________________  West:   

What are the surrounding Zoning Districts? 

 North: ( ______ ) _________________________________________  South: ( ______ )   

 East: ( ______ ) _________________________________________  West: ( ______ )   

What is the suggested use of the site on the Township’s Land Use Plan map?  ____________________________________________________  

Is municipal water currently available?  Yes  No Will it be made available?  Yes  No If yes, when? _________________  

Is municipal sewer currently available?  Yes  No Will it be made available?  Yes  No If yes, when? _________________  

Does the site have access to a public street or road?  Yes  No If yes, name  _____________________________________________  

Are there any known environmental constraints on the site?  Yes  No 

 Wetland(s)  Floodplain(s)  Brownfield(s)  Soil(s)  Other (please specify)  ______________________________________  

 ____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

Please attach the minutes of the Planning Commission. 

 Yes, the minutes are attached.  No, the minutes are not attached. 

Please attach copies of any reports, exhibits or other documented provided to the Planning Commission. 

 Yes, copies of documentation are attached.  No, copies of documentation are not attached. 

Please attach any public comments, letters, or petitions. 

 Yes, public comments are attached.  No, public comments are not attached. 

 

Please include any additional information or comments as an attachment. 
 
Revised: 12/19/14 

Summit 20-01-0001
John Worden 517 788 4113

Morris Investment -Cynthia Schultz 734 474 9452

Urban Residential RU-1 General Commercial C-2
24

1.41 of 2.25

Residential

allow expansion of self storage facility at 1245 E. McDevitt

Commercial Residential
Commercial Residential

C-2 General Commercial RU-1 Rural Residential
C-2 General Commercial RU-1 Rural Residential

Type text here
East Mc Devitt

Type text here

Type text here

High Density Residential

03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 20



03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 21



03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 22



03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 23



03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 24



03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 25



03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 26



03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 27



03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 28



  
www.region2planning.com/jackson-county-planning-commission/ 

 

Jackson County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 

COORDINATED ZONING REPORT | #20-07 

 To: County Planning Commissioners 
 From: Grant E. Bauman, Principal Planner 
 Date: March 9, 2020 

 Proposal: A rezoning in Summit Township 

Request 

The subject properties are proposed for rezoning to ‘office (O-1)’ (see the zoning amendment and rezon-
ing worksheet forms). 

Purpose 

The purpose of the request is to ‘allow development of the [properties] for office use’ (see the Zoning 
Amendment Form).* 

Location and Size of the Property 

The subject properties (ID #000-13-07-426-027-01 and #000-13-07-426-027-02), with a combined area 
of approximately 10 acres, are situated in Section 7 (T3S-R1W) of the Township (see Figure 1). They are 
located on the southwest corner of the intersection of Spring Arbor and Robinson Roads. 

Current Land Use 

Property assessment data shows that the subject properties contain single-family dwellings and are as-
sessed ‘residential’, as are lots to the northwest, southeast, and south (see Figure 2). Redeemer Lu-
theran Church is adjacent to the parcels and Lumen Christi Catholic School is located nearby to the east. 

Future Land Use 

The Summit Township Master Plan recommends ‘low density residential’ uses to the southeast, south-
west, and northwest and ‘office’ uses to the northeast (see Figure 3). ‘Public/semi-public’ uses are rec-
ommended further to the east. 

Current Zoning 

The subject properties are zoned ‘suburban residential 2 (RS-2)’, as are parcels to the east, south, and 
northwest (see Figure 4). A peninsula of ‘planned residential (PR-1)’ zoning is located directly to the 
north and ‘office (O-1)’ zoning is located further to the northeast on both sides of Robinson Road. 

Water and Sewer Availability 

Municipal water service is provided to the subject parcels and there are plans to provide sewer service 
(see the rezoning worksheet form). 

                                                 
* Please note that the proposed use is listed for informational purposes only. It should not be utilized in making the rezoning 
decision. Circumstances may change tomorrow which make the proposed use impractical. All of the uses that the proposed 
zoning designation would allow are pertinent to the rezoning request. 

03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 29



CZ | #20-07 Page 2 
 

 

Public Road/Street Access 

Spring Arbor Road, a paved ‘county primary’ constructed to ‘class A standards’, and Robinson Road, a 
paved ‘county primary’, provide direct access to the subject parcel. 

Environmental Constraints 

The subject properties have no known environmental constraints according to the Zoning Administrator 
(see the rezoning worksheet form). 

Township Planning Commission Recommendation 

It should be noted that the Summit Township Planning Commission first considered a request to rezone 
the subject properties to ‘general commercial (C-2)’ during its November 19, 2019, meeting and passed 
a motion to “accept the request for contractual rezoning (C-2) at the applicant’s request” (see the at-
tached 11/19/19 meeting minutes). The applicant ultimately decided to seek the requested ‘O-1’ rezon-
ing. The Summit Township Planning Commission then recommended approval of the proposed rezoning 
of the parcels to ‘office (O-1)’ (see the attached 2/18/20 meeting minutes). 

JCPC Staff Analysis 

Sec. 150.381 of Summit Township’s zoning code —and the zoning plan element in the Summit Township 
Master Plan— contains the following criteria upon which a rezoning request must be considered: 

1. Is the proposed rezoning consistent with the policies and uses proposed for that area in the 
Master Plan? 

Yes. Summit Township’s future land use map recommends ‘low density residential’ uses along 

the south side of Spring Arbor Road (in the vicinity of Robinson Road), ‘office’ uses to the north-
east, and ‘public/semi-public’ uses further to the east (see Figure 3). Given that a future land use 
category is not meant to be applied to individual parcels as specifically as a zoning district, the 
proposed rezoning is consistent. 

2. Will all of the uses allowed under the proposed rezoning be compatible with other zones and 
uses in the surrounding area? 

Yes. ‘Office’ uses and zoning are already located to the northeast and ‘public/semi-public’ uses 

are located to the west and further to the east. 

3. Will public services and facilities be significantly adversely impacted by a development or use 
allowed under the requested rezoning? 

No. Spring Arbor Road, a paved ‘county primary’ constructed to ‘class A standards’, and Robin-

son Road, a paved ‘county primary’, provide direct access to the subject parcel. Municipal water 
service is available and municipal sewer service is planned. 

4. Will the uses allowed under the proposed rezoning be equally or better suited to the area 
than uses allowed under the current zoning district? 

Yes. ‘Office’ uses are located to the northeast, a church is located directly to the west, and a 

large private school is located nearby to the east. 

 

03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 30

http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll/Michigan/summittwp_mi/summittownshipmichigancodeofordinances?f=templates$fn=default.htm$3.0$vid=amlegal:summittownship_mi
http://www.region2planning.com/wp-content/uploads/2016/11/Sumit-TownshipApprovedMasterPlan.pdf
http://www.region2planning.com/wp-content/uploads/2016/11/Sumit-TownshipApprovedMasterPlan.pdf


CZ | #20-07 Page 3 
 

JCPC Staff Advisement 

The rezoning request is consistent with the Summit Township 
Master Plan. Its Future Land Use Plan element recommends ‘of-
fice’ uses in the general area and its Zoning Plan element equates 
the ‘office (O-1)’ zoning district to the ‘office’ future land use cate-
gory. The Township should also consider amending the future land 
use map to recognize the adjacent church as a ‘public/semi-public’ 
area and to extend the existing ‘office’ area to the east and south 
sides of the intersection of Spring Arbor and Robinson Roads. 

 Based upon this analysis, staff advises the Summit Township Plan-
ning Commission to recommend APPROVAL WITH COMMENTS to 
the Summit Township Board of the proposed rezoning of the sub-
ject properties (ID #000-13-07-426-027-01 and #000-13-07-426-
027-02) to ‘office (O-1)’ and to suggest that the Township’s mas-
ter plan be amended as described in this report. 

Figure 1 
Location 

 

Suggested Actions: 

(1) Recommend APPROVAL 
(2) Recommend DISAPPROVAL 
(3) Recommend APPROVAL WITH 

COMMENTS 
(4) Take NO ACTION 

Staff Report Attachments: 

Background information provided 
by the Summit Township Zoning 
Administrator 

03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 31



CZ | #20-07 Page 4 
 

Figure 2 
Property Assessment 

 

Figure 3 
Municipal Future Land Use 

 

03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 32



CZ | #20-07 Page 5 
 

Figure 4 
Municipal Zoning 

 

Figure 5a 
Aerial Photo 

 

03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 33



CZ | #20-07 Page 6 
 

Figure 5b 
Aerial Photo 

 

Figure 6 
Google Photo | Looking South 

 

03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 34



03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 35

gbauman
Typewriter
20       07



Summit Township Planning Commission 
February 18, 2020 

 
 
 

Members Present: Jack Shelby; Chairman, Laurie Cunningham; Secretary, Robert Kendall, 
Allan Hooper, Mark Cesarz, John Griffin, Tom Beila, Todd Emmons, Board Liaison, John Worden; 
Summit Township, Zoning Administrator. 
 
Members Absent: George Gancsos Jr 

 
The meeting was called to order by Jack Shelby; Chairman on February 18, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. in 
The Summit Township Hall, 2121 Ferguson Rd. 
 
A motion was made by Allan Hooper, supported by John Griffin to approve the agenda. Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
A motion was made by John Griffin, supported by Robert Kendall, to approve the minutes of 
the January 21, 2020 meeting. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
    
Case# 20-02-003-Site Plan review-3370 Spring Arbor Rd-Jackson County Animal Shelter.  
Jason Covalle, Architect for Animal Shelter, presented the proposed building addition  
(6,545 sq. ft.) and parking addition for the Animal Shelter.  There will be a separate area for 
adoption and the intake of animals.  The electrical, mechanical and generator will be updated. 
New Fire suppression will be installed. Approval was received for the storm retention plan from 
Jackson County Drain Commissioner. There were questions from Board members concerning 
hours of operation, water source, noise, lights in parking lot and the propane tank. Jason 
Covalle stated there may be some after hour learning classes, has not had any noise complaints 
in the past, will connect to the water main on Spring Arbor Rd, parking lot lights will full cut off 
led lights, and will be removing the propane tank and hooking to natural gas.  John Worden 
informed him that they will have to work with fire chief so the east side of building will be 
drivable for fire trucks. 
Public Comment: none 
A motion made by Allan Hooper, supported by John Griffin to approve the site plan review with 
conditions of approval from the Drain Commissioner, DPW Department, JDOT, and the Fire 
Department. Motion carried unanimously. 
 

 
Case 20-01-0001-Morris Inv./Cynthia Schultz-1235-1245 McDevitt Rd -Rezoning. Cindy Schultz 
explained she wants to divide off parcel 000-13-24-301-068-00, rezone from RU-1 to C-3 and 
combine remaining property from 1235 E McDevitt Rd to join 1245 E McDevitt Rd 000-13-24-
301-067-00, rezone from C-1 to C-3. Plans to split the property and sell the existing house, and 

03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 36



use the land as part of storage and to add 30 additional units. The existing entrance will be 
used. 
Public Comment: none 
A motion was made by Allan Hooper, supported by John Griffin to recommend to the Township 
Board approval of the the requested rezoning as presented. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
Case 20-02-0002-2500-2600 Robinson Rd-BSJ Real Estate owner- Rezone from RS-2 to O-1 
Kevin Thompson on behalf for BSJ Realty presented the request for rezoning to O-1. Region 2, 
Grant Bauman has recommended the rezoning, and the Master Plan fits the area. Will be 
combining the parcels for approximately 10 acres, and plan to implement buffer zones. Board 
members inquired about current plans for the space. Kevin Thompson informed them that BSJ 
Realty is not going to be developing it, only preparing the area for sale. 
Public comment: 
Moe Page, lives right next door at 2650 Robinson Rd., concerned with what may go in there and 
how will affect property values, and hopes the developer with be considerate of the neighbors. 
Jack Shelby explained that any future development will be subject to a site plan review and will 
have to presented to this board. The Road Commission would have jurisdiction over where the 
driveway would be placed, Spring Arbor Rd versus Robinson Rd. 
Cheryl Conrad, 2565 Robinson Rd, asked why the hurry to rezone, 10 acre parcel, the building 
could be huge, would need a big buffer to hide. Traffic concerns with the Lumen Christi drive. 
Todd Emmons explained there is a limitation on elevation and also property is close to the 
airport and may need their approval. John Shelby explained again that those concerns along 
with lights and drainage etc. would have to be addressed and approved at the site plan review 
when ready to build. 
Tom Legarie, 2505 Robinson Rd. Asked to be notified when a site plan comes to this Board, has 
concerns with entrances, which explained will be determined by JDOT.  
Moe Page, asked about lot growing wild until its sold. John Worden informed him there is a 
Weed and Grass Ordinance would have to be followed.  
John Worden presented letter of opposition to the Board that he received. 
A motion was made by Todd Emmons, supported by Robert Kendall to recommend approval to 
the Township Board the rezoning of parcels-000-13-07-426-027-01 and 000-13-07-426-027-
02,2500 and 2600 Robinson Rd. from RS-2 to O-1. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Other Business: none 
 
Meeting adjourned at 6:54 p.m. by Jack Shelby; Chairman 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
________________________     
Laurie Cunningham, Secretary 
 
Summit Township Planning Commission 

03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 37

gbauman
Highlight



 

120 West Michigan Avenue • Jackson, Michigan  49201 •  (517) 788-4426 •  (517) 788-4635 
 

STAFF REPORT | #20-02-0002 

 To: Summit Township Planning Commissioners 
c/o John Worden, Summit Township Zoning Administrator 

 From: Grant E. Bauman, R2PC Principal Planner 
 Date: February 4, 2020 

 Proposal: The rezoning of 2500 & 2600 Robinson Road 

Request 
The subject properties are proposed for rezoning to ‘office (O-1)’ from ‘suburban residential 2 (RS-2)’ 
(see the zoning amendment and rezoning worksheet forms). It should be noted that the Planning Com-
mission first considered a request to rezone the subject properties to ‘general commercial (C-2)’ during 
its November 19, 2019, meeting and passed a motion to “accept the request for contractual rezoning 
(C2) at the applicant’s request” (see the attached meeting minutes). The applicant ultimately decided to 
seek the requested ‘O-1’ rezoning. 

Purpose 
The purpose of the request is to ‘allow development of the [properties] for office use’ (see the Zoning 
Amendment Form).1 

Location and Size of the Property 
The subject properties (ID #000-13-07-426-027-01 and #000-13-07-426-027-02), with a combined acre-
age of approximately 10 acres, are situated in Section 7 (T3S-R1W) of the Township (see Figure 1). They 
are located on the southwest corner of the intersection of Spring Arbor and Robinson Roads. 

Current Land Use 
Property assessment data shows that the subject properties contain single-family dwellings and are as-
sessed ‘residential’, as are lots to the northwest, southeast, and south (see Figure 2). Redeemer Lu-
theran Church is adjacent to the parcels and Lumen Christi Catholic School is located nearby to the east. 

Future Land Use 
The Summit Township Master Plan recommends ‘low density residential’ uses to southeast, southwest, 
and northwest and ‘office’ uses to the northeast (see Figure 3). ‘Public/semi-public’ uses are recom-
mended further to the east. 

Current Zoning 
The subject properties are zoned ‘suburban residential 2 (RS-2)’, as are parcels to the east, south, and 
northwest (see Figure 4). A peninsula of ‘planned residential (PR-1)’ zoning is located directly to the 
north and ‘office (O-1)’ zoning is located further to the northeast on both sides of Robinson Road. 

                                                 
1 Please note that the proposed use is listed for informational purposes only. It should not be utilized in making the rezoning 
decision. Circumstances may change tomorrow which make the proposed use impractical. All of the uses that the proposed 
zoning designation would allow are pertinent to the rezoning request. 

03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 38



Staff Report | #20-02-0002 Page 2 

Water and Sewer Availability 
Municipal water service is provided to the subject parcels and there are plans to provide sewer service 
(see the rezoning worksheet form). 

Public Road/Street Access 
Spring Arbor Road, a paved ‘county primary’ constructed to ‘class A standards’, and Robinson Road, a 
paved ‘county primary’, provide direct access to the subject parcel. 

Environmental Constraints 
The subject properties have no known environmental constraints according to the Zoning Administrator 
(see the rezoning worksheet form). 

Analysis and Advisement 
Sec. 150.381 of Summit Township’s zoning code —and the zoning plan element in the Summit Township 
Master Plan— contains the following criteria upon which a rezoning request must be considered: 

1. Is the proposed rezoning consistent with the policies and uses proposed for that area in the Town-
ship’s Master Land Use Plan? 

Yes. Summit Township’s future land use map recommends ‘low density residential’ uses along the 

south side of Spring Arbor Road (in the vicinity of Robinson Road), ‘office’ uses to the northeast, and 
‘public/semi-public’ uses further to the east (see Figure 3). Given that a future land use category is 
not meant to be applied to individual parcels as specifically as a zoning district, the proposed rezon-
ing is consistent. 

2. Will all of the uses allowed under the proposed rezoning be compatible with other zones and uses 
in the surrounding area? 

Yes. ‘Office’ uses and zoning are already located to the northeast and ‘public/semi-public’ uses are 

located to the west and further to the east. 

3. Will any public services and facilities be significantly adversely impacted by a development or use 
allowed under the requested rezoning? 

No. Spring Arbor Road, a paved ‘county primary’ constructed to ‘class A standards’, and Robinson 

Road, a paved ‘county primary’, provide direct access to the subject parcel. Municipal water service 
is available and municipal sewer service is planned. 

4. Will the uses allowed under the proposed rezoning be equally or better suited to the area than 
uses allowed under the current zoning of the land? 

Yes. ‘Office’ uses are located to the northeast, a church is located 

directly to the west, and a large private school is located nearby 
to the east. 

R2PC Staff Advisement 
The rezoning request is consistent with the Summit Township Master 
Plan. Its Future Land Use Plan element recommends ‘office’ uses in 
the general area and its Zoning Plan element equates the ‘office (O-
1)’ zoning district to the ‘office’ future land use category. The Town-
ship should also consider amending the future land use map to recog-
nize the adjacent church as a ‘public/semi-public’ area and to extend 
the existing ‘office’ area to the east and south sides of the intersec-
tion of Spring Arbor and Robinson Roads. 

Based upon this analysis, staff advises the Summit Township Planning Commission to recommend AP-
PROVAL WITH COMMENTS to the Summit Township Board of the proposed rezoning of the subject 
properties (ID #000-13-07-426-027-01 and #000-13-07-426-027-02) to ‘office (O-1)’ and to suggest that 
the Township’s master plan be amended as described in this report. 

Suggested Actions: 
(1) Recommend APPROVAL 
(2) Recommend DISAPPROVAL 
(3) Recommend APPROVAL 

WITH COMMENTS 
(4) Take NO ACTION 

Staff Report Attachments: 
Background information pro-
vided by the Summit Township 
Zoning Administrator 

03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 39

http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll/Michigan/summittwp_mi/summittownshipmichigancodeofordinances?f=templates$fn=default.htm$3.0$vid=amlegal:summittownship_mi
http://www.region2planning.com/wp-content/uploads/2016/11/Sumit-TownshipApprovedMasterPlan.pdf
http://www.region2planning.com/wp-content/uploads/2016/11/Sumit-TownshipApprovedMasterPlan.pdf


Staff Report | #20-02-0002 Page 3 

Figure 1 

Location 

 
Figure 2 

Property Assessment 

 

03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 40



Staff Report | #20-02-0002 Page 4 

Figure 3 

Municipal Future Land Use 

 
Figure 4 

Municipal Zoning 

 

03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 41



Staff Report | #20-02-0002 Page 5 

Figure 5a 

Aerial Photo 

Figure 5b 

Aerial Photo 

  
Figure 5c 

Google Photo 

 
 

03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 42



JCPC Case #: _____-_____ 
(For JCPC Use Only) ZONING AMENDMENT FORM 

 
 JACKSON COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 

(COORDINATING ZONING) 
Return to: Jackson County Planning Commission ∙ c/o Region 2 Planning Commission ∙ 120 W. Michigan Avenue ∙ Jackson, Michigan 49201 

Please submit the Planning Commission meeting minutes and any reports/exhibits the Commission used to makes its recommendation with this form. Use 
a separate form for each proposed zoning change. Please include a legal description/ survey with rezoning requests in addition to the Parcel ID Number. 

A copy of this form with the JCPC recommendation will be mailed back to the Clerk, who will return a copy to the JCPC with the Township Board Action. 

 

THE ______________________________ TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION submits the following proposed zoning change to the Jackson 
County Planning Commission for its review, comment, and recommendation: 

(ANSWER EITHER A or B) 

A. DISTRICT BOUNDARY CHANGE (REZONING): 

(Provide the legal and popular property descriptions, the Parcel ID Number(s), the number of acres, and the section(s) in which the 
property is located. Attach additional sheets if more space is needed. Attach a map showing all changes and additions.) 

 ________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

 ________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

 ________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

1. The above described property has a proposed zoning change FROM  ____________________________________________ ( ______ ) 

ZONE TO  ___________________________________________________ ( ______ ) ZONE. 

2. PURPOSE OF PROPOSED CHANGE:  ________________________________________________________________________________  

 _____________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

B. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT: 

The following Article(s) and Section(s) is amended or altered:  ARTICLE  ______________________ SECTION  ____________________  

The NEW SECTION reads as follows: (Attach additional sheets if more space is needed.)  ________________________________________  

 ________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

 ________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

C. PUBLIC HEARING on the above amendment was held on:    month __________    day __________    year __________ 

D. NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING was published/mailed on the following date:    month __________    day __________    year __________ 

(Notice must be provided at least fifteen days prior to the public hearing.) 

E. THE NEWSPAPER (having general circulation in Township) carrying the NOTICE: _____________________________________________  

The PROPOSED ZONING AMENDMENT described herein was duly considered by the Township Planning Commission and will be 

forwarded to the Township Board with a recommendation to  APPROVE or  DISAPPROVE. 

________________________________________  Chair or  Secretary ______ / ______ / ______ (enter date) 

JACKSON COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION (JCPC) ACTION: 

1. Date of Meeting:    month _____________    day _____________    year ______________ 

2. The JCPC herewith certifies receipt of the proposed amendment on the above date and: 

 Recommends APPROVAL of the zoning change 

 Recommends DISAPPROVAL of the zoning change for the reasons stated in the attached letter. 

 Recommends APPROVAL of the zoning change with comments, as stated in the attached letter. 

 Takes NO ACTION. 

________________________________________, Recording Secretary ______ / ______ / ______ (enter date) 

TOWNSHIP BOARD ACTION: 

1. Date of Meeting:    month _____________    day _____________    year ______________ 

2. The ____________________ Township Board herewith certifies that a legally constituted meeting held on the above date and that 

the proposed amendment  PASSED,  DID NOT PASS, or was  REFERRED ANEW to the Township Planning Commission. 

 

Township Clerk 
Revised: 12/19/14 

Summit

2500 and 2600 Robinson Rd.- 000-13-07-426-027-01, 000-13-07-426-027-02 - 2.95, 7.05 acres, Section 7

Suburban Residential RS-2

Citizen Patriot

 Office O-1

February 18 2020

 February 2nd  2020

Feb. 18th 2020

allow development of the property for office use

03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 43



JCPC Case #: _____-_____ 
(For JCPC Use Only) REZONING WORKSHEET FORM 

 
 JACKSON COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 

(COORDINATING ZONING) 
Return to: Jackson County Planning Commission ∙ c/o Region 2 Planning Commission ∙ 120 W. Michigan Avenue ∙ Jackson, Michigan 49201 

Please submit with the “Zoning Amendment Form” for a district boundary change (rezoning), not a text amendment. 

 
Township of:  ______________________________________  Township Case #:  _________________________________________  

Township official we may contact:  _______________________________________________  Phone #: ( _____ ) _____ - __________ 

Applicant: ____________________________________________________________________  Phone #: ( _____ ) _____ - __________ 

Rezoning Request: From: ______________________________ ( ______ ) To: ______________________________ ( ______ ) 

Property Location: Section(s): ____________________ Quarter Section(s):  NW  NE  SW  SE 

Legal Description and/or Survey Map/Tax Map (please attach)  Yes  No (Please do not use only the Parcel ID Number) 

Parcel Size (if more than one parcel, label “A” - “Z”):  ________________________________________________________________________  

 ____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

Please attach location map  Yes  No 

What is the existing use of the site?  _________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

 ____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

What is the proposed use of the site?  _______________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

 ____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

What are the surrounding uses (e.g.: agriculture, single-family residential, highway commercial, etc.)? 

 North:  _________________________________________________  South:   

 East:  _________________________________________________  West:   

What are the surrounding Zoning Districts? 

 North: ( ______ ) _________________________________________  South: ( ______ )   

 East: ( ______ ) _________________________________________  West: ( ______ )   

What is the suggested use of the site on the Township’s Land Use Plan map?  ____________________________________________________  

Is municipal water currently available?  Yes  No Will it be made available?  Yes  No If yes, when? _________________  

Is municipal sewer currently available?  Yes  No Will it be made available?  Yes  No If yes, when? _________________  

Does the site have access to a public street or road?  Yes  No If yes, name  _____________________________________________  

Are there any known environmental constraints on the site?  Yes  No 

 Wetland(s)  Floodplain(s)  Brownfield(s)  Soil(s)  Other (please specify)  ______________________________________  

 ____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

Please attach the minutes of the Planning Commission. 

 Yes, the minutes are attached.  No, the minutes are not attached. 

Please attach copies of any reports, exhibits or other documented provided to the Planning Commission. 

 Yes, copies of documentation are attached.  No, copies of documentation are not attached. 

Please attach any public comments, letters, or petitions. 

 Yes, public comments are attached.  No, public comments are not attached. 

 

Please include any additional information or comments as an attachment. 
 
Revised: 12/19/14 

Summit

John Worden 517 788 4113
BSJ Real Estate  517 206

Suburban Residential RS-2
4700

2.95 acres &  7.05 acres

Residential

General Commercial

Planned Residential

Residential
Residential
Residential

& Office

O-1 Office
RS-2 Residential

RS-2 Residential
RS-2 Residential

Type text here

Type text here
Type text here Robinson & Spring Arbor

7

Residential

20-02-0002

Office O-1

03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 44



Summit Township Planning Commission  

November 19, 2019 

 

 

Members Present: Jack Shelby; Chairman, Laurie Cunningham; Secretary, Robert Kendall, 
George Gancsos Jr, Allan Hooper, Mark Cesarz, John Griffin, Todd Emmons; Board Liaison,  
John Worden; Summit Township Zoning Administrator. 
 
Members Absent: Tom Biela 

 
The meeting was called to order by Jack Shelby, Chairman on November 19, 2019 at 6:00 p.m. in the 
Township hall, 2121 Ferguson Rd. 
 
A motion was made by Allan Hooper, supported by Mark Cesarz to approve the minutes of the August 29, 
2019 meeting with the correction of adding John Griffin present. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
 
Case #19-11-0014- Conditional Use Permit- 2500 Spring Arbor Rd.  
Request for a Conditional Use Permit to operate a Secondary Trade School for Cosmetology at 3386 Spring 
Arbor Road, Applicant Denise Geisman. Applicant is currently renting a space and business is growing. She 
is looking to purchase a larger building. Hours would be from 9 a.m. to 3 p.m. Monday/Friday, and some 
Saturdays. She also has a class from 3 p.m. to 8 p.m. three nights a week. Will be teaching Cosmetology, 
Manicurist, student instructors. Maximum students would be 10 to 12, but normal class size is 2 to 4 
students at a time.  
Question from resident, what is the difference between the career center and yours?  Responded that the 
career center is for students under 18 and this class is for 18 and above. George Gancsos Jr. asked about 
parking, the most would be 20 at a time and there are 47 parking spaces available.  
 
A Motion was made by Allan Hooper, supported by John Griffin to grant the Conditional Use Permit, 
With said hours; 8:00 a.m. to 9:00 p.m.  7 days a week. Motion carried unanimously.  

 
 
Case # 19-11-0015 & 19-11-0016- Rezoning from Suburban (RS-2) to General Commercial (C-2) 
2500 and 2600 Robinson Rd 
Request for a rezoning of property at 2500 Robinson Rd 000-13-07-426-027-01 2.95 acres and 2600 
Robinson Rd. 000-13-07-426-027-02 7.05 acres from Suburban (RS2) to General Commercial (C2), 
Applicant BSJ Real Estate, LLC.  Kevin Thompson, Attorney speaking on behalf of the applicant, stated that 
the applicant and realtor believe that having the parcels rezoned from residential to its intended use of 
commercial will enhance the value of the subject property and make it more likely that a purchaser 
seeking commercial property to look for that commercial property in Summit Township. Buffers, berms 
would be put in place to buffer noise from residents south on Robinson Rd.   
Jack Shelby asked why (C2) and not (O1) like most business zoned in that area already. Thompson replied 
the developer wanted to have flexibility. 
Robert Kendall asked will any development be only facing Spring Arbor Rd and not Robinson Rd? 
Thompson replied yes. 

03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 45

gbauman
Highlight



John Worden pointed out that (C2) Commercial will open property to all allowable things under C2. 
The Applicant can request a “Contractual” zoning.  
Kevin Thompson says that they are willing to have Contractual zoning. 
  
Public Comment- opposed 
Rebecca Ethridge, concerns about property values and increased traffic. 
Tom LeGarie, concerns about property values and increased traffic. 
Susan Dombrowski, concerns about increased traffic, increased crime, well head protection issue question 
and property values, business are not in the area several have closed. 
John Abbey, concerned what kind of business C2 would bring and would prefer it remain residential and 
have any traffic study’s been done.  
Anne Lusk, concerned about traffic, noise buffers, prefers the rural atmosphere, website zoning map from 
2008  
Kevin Thompson made additional comments and answered some of the concerns. He feels the request is 
consistent with the current business along Spring Arbor Rd. and buffers and landscaping would be used.  
He again offered a Contractual zoning as something the developer would consider.  
Tom LeGarie, informed Commission that across the street the property for sale has a sign that says zoned 
C2, which is not correct. Also would like to keep residential atmosphere. 
Maurice Page, recently moved to area, concerned about what C2 zoning would allow and what happens 
if the property is sold after it is rezoned.  
Don Stillwell, phone call to John Worden opposing the rezoning. 
Cheryl Moore, letter written and read by Susan Dombrowski is in opposition of rezoning. 
Close public comment 
Board Comments 
Todd Emmons, understands concerns, not sure that this will increase already significant traffic on Spring 
Arbor Road. He would be more in favor of the “contractual” zoning option, pointed out that any future 
development would be subject to a site plan. 
Jack Shelby, master plan for Spring Arbor Rd is primarily office and criteria for rezoning should follow the 
master plan. This would be contradictory to what the Board just voted for with the new master plan 2016. 
George Gancsos Jr, not comfortable with blanket C2 zoning  
Allan Hooper, agrees it may not be a great residential development, but not ready to approve a C2 
rezoning, either table or consider “office” rezoning. 
John Worden, the applicant would have to request a contract zoning, the contract zoning stipulations 
would stay with the property if it were to be sold, and development has to be started in 18 months or 
would revert back to original zoning. The Contract zoning would be deeded and recorded with the Register 
of deeds. John Worden suggested a 4 member committee of the planning commission to work out the 
details with the applicant and bring to the Commission for a decision. 
Robert Kendell, agrees to consider contract zoning 
Kevin Thompson requested contractual zoning option on behalf of applicant.  
Discussion among Board members as to how they are to proceed. 
 
A motion was made by Jack Shelby, supported by Todd Emmons to accept the request for contractual 
zoning (C2) at the applicant’s request. Roll Call: Ayes; Jack Shelby, Laurie Cunningham, John Griffin, George 
Gancsos Jr, Robert Kendell, Todd Emmons, Mark Cesarz. Nays: Allan Hooper. Motion carried.  
 
 
 
 

03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 46

gbauman
Highlight



Other Business:  
Allan Hooper, suggested that Region 2 Planning have input for these types of zoning change requests,  
Zoning Administrator and Region 2 Planning, should have the recommendations, ready before the 
Commission meets. 
 
A motion was made by Allan Hooper, supported by Robert Kendall to engage Region 2 for opinions on 
Zoning Ordinance changes at the discretion of the Zoning Administrator. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Contractual Zoning committee members; Allan Hooper, Mark Cesarz, Jack Shelby, John Griffin and John 
Worden, Zoning Administrator.  
 

 
Meeting adjourned at 7:20 p.m. by Jack Shelby, Chairman 
 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
_______________________ 
Laurie Cunningham, Secretary 
 
Summit Township Planning Commission 
 
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 47



LegendUntitled Map
' 25CO Rob :'!Str'i Rd' Vfite a description for your map
E Ganton Home Care
db Redeemer Lutheran Church

03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 48



NOTICE 
 
The Summit Township Planning Commission will hold a public hearing February 18, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. in the 
Township Hall, 2121 Ferguson Road. 
 
At this time all interested parties will be heard on the request of BSJ Realty. LLC of 3606 Wildwood Ave. to 
rezone property located at 2500 and 2600 Robinson Rd. from Suburban Residential (RS-2) to Office (O-1). 
 
The property and request are more particularly described and on display at the Township Offices.  
 
Current Zoning for the property is Suburban Residential (RS-2) 
 
Summit Township Office is open weekdays from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. during which time the Zoning 
Ordinance/Zoning Map may be examined. Written comments regarding the above may be directed to the 
Township, or by calling (517) 788-4113 Extension 240.  Summit Township will provide any necessary or 
reasonable auxiliary aids at the meeting for persons with disabilities, upon ten – (10) days written notice to 
the Township, 2121 Ferguson Rd., Jackson, MI 49203. 
 
John Worden 
Zoning Administrator 
 
Jackson Citizen Patriot  
Insertion Date:  February 2, 2020 
 
Affidavit requested.  Please call C. Brown at 788-4113 Ext. 221 with cost 
 
Copy to Meghan Dobben, Clerk 

03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 49



Case#20-02-0002-2500-2600 Robinson Rd
Rezone from Suburban Residential (RS-2) to Office (0-1)

W

03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 50



  
www.region2planning.com/jackson-county-planning-commission 

 

Jackson County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 
 

PA 116 FARMLAND AGREEMENT | #20-01 

 Applicant: Michael & Barbara Greiner 
5312 Hanover Road 
Hanover, MI 49241 

 Date: March 9, 2020 

 Proposal: Application for Farmland Agreement in Hanover Township 

 Location: An application was filed for the subject properties—Property IDs #000-17-20-426-
001-00 and #000-17-21-301-001-03—situated in Sections 20 & 21 of Hanover 
Township. (T4S,R2W). They are located on the west side of Rountree Road, north 
of the Village of Hanover (see Map 1). 

 Description: The subject properties have a combined area of approximately 65 acres of which 
53 acres (approximately) are cultivated. Aerial photography reveals that the re-
maining 12 acres (approximately) are comprised of woodlands (placed in the ‘all 
other acres’ category) and that there are no buildings (see Map 3b). 

 Term: A 30-year term is proposed on the application. 

 Future Land Use: The Jackson County Community Comprehensive Land Use Plan places the proper-
ties in areas recommended for "Agricultural Preservation", with a proposed 
“Greenway” along its western edge (Map 2). It is curious to note that a “Residen-
tial” area anchored in the Village of Hanover also extends into the southeastern 
edge of the properties, illustrating the need for a new countywide future land use 
map. 

 Staff Comments: The application contains various errors/omissions which the applicant should con-
sider addressing: 

 Question #15: The “2 or more persons having a joint or common interest in 
the land” answer should have been checked. 

 Question #16: No type of “agricultural enterprise” was identified for the 
properties. The fact that no buildings are located on the properties was not 
stated for question #16g. 

Based upon this analysis, staff advises the Jackson County Planning Commission 
to recommend APPROVAL WITH COMMENTS of the application provided that the 
applicant considers making the corrections/clarifications suggested in the staff 
report to the Hanover Township Board. 

  

03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 51



FA #20-01 Page 2 
 

Map 1 
Location Map 

 

Map 2 
County Future Land Use Map 

 

03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 52



FA #20-01 Page 3 
 

Map 3a 
Aerial Photograph 

 

Map 3b 
Aerial Photograph 

 

03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 53



03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 54



03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 55



03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 56



03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 57



03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 58



03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 59



03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 60



03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 61



03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 62



03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 63



03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 64



03/09/20 JCPC Meeting Agenda Page 65


